RFP 10-83

Indiana Gaming Commission

RESPONSE TO WRITTEN QUESTIONS

1.4        SUMMARY SCOPE OF WORK

The IGC seeks the services of at least one Vendor to perform independent gaming laboratory services, included but not limited to:

· Upon request, provide IGC staff with flow diagrams/charts of each system (and its associated hardware/software) certified by the Vendor, depicting the inter-relationship of such system components.  This documentation will be provided in addition to the reports that specifically describe which elements of the system components are to be field tested and verified by the IGC upon installation at an Indiana casino.

Q1:
“Upon request” seems to conflict with “This documentation will be provided in 


addition to the reports”. Does this mean that the flow diagrams/charts and         specific reports are to be provided only “upon request”?


A1:
Yes.
2.1.1 Mandatory Requirements

· Confirm that Respondent has provided Certification Testing services, or a substantial equivalent, for at least two state gaming regulatory agencies in jurisdictions with commercial casinos since January 1, 2007.
· Provide a complete list of state gaming regulatory agencies in jurisdictions with commercial casinos that Respondent or any of Respondent’s Affiliates have contracted with or provided services to since January 1, 2007.  Include dates of the contracts and/or services and a brief description of the scope of work for each.

Q2:
Does a state lottery qualify as a state gaming regulatory agency? Are tribal casinos considered ‘commercial’ casinos in this context?
A2:
A state lottery will qualify as a state gaming regulatory agency for purposes of this RFP.  


The scoring panel for this RFP will not consider tribal casinos as “commercial” casinos.
· Provide proof that Respondent’s United States laboratories maintain current International Organization for Standardization (ISO) (17020 and 17025) certification.
Q3: 
Our lab is ISO17025 accredited.  ISO17020 specifically addresses field (onsite) inspection.  We are presently going through the latter accreditation.  In order to meet this mandatory requirement, must we already have ISO17020 accreditation?

A3:
The mandatory requirement is being amended to eliminate the ISO 17020 accreditation requirement from this RFP. Please refer to Addendum 1 for the updated language and requirements.
2.4 TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

The Technical Proposal must be divided into the sections as described below. Every point made in each section must be addressed in the order given. The same outline numbers must be used in the response. RFP language should not be repeated within the response.

Q4:
Does this mean that there should be no repeating of the RFP language within the specific response to a question, or that there should be no repeating of the RFP language as part of the outline number?

A4:
The intention of this statement is to request that Respondents provide a thorough explanation for each question and not simply restate the question asked in each section. Please provide detailed information in each section and subsection.
2.4.2.4 Provide evidence of the Respondent’s ability to test and certify items or technologies for


compliance with interoperability standards/protocols adopted by the Gaming Standards


Association (GSA).


Q5:
Is there a requirement for new gaming devices, associated equipment and systems

to be GSA compliant? If not, what is the basis for requiring this testing and certification?

A5:
68 IAC 2-6-2(a) identifies a number of items and technologies that require certification testing and ultimate approval by the IGC, including communication software critical to the functionality of a casino operation.  An increasing number of items and technologies are purportedly being designed to comply with GSA interoperability protocols.  It is the staff’s position that interoperability testing is a necessary element to certifying and approving any items or technologies that are so designed.        
2.4.2.1 Provide a comprehensive list of independent technical standards that Respondent   

has developed and would anticipate using to perform Certification Testing in     compliance with Indiana laws (specifically 68 IAC 2-6-1 through 68 IAC 2-6-3.1) and the Scope of Work section of this RFP.  Include complete copies of at least two (2) such technical standards.

O6:
Throughout our company’s history we have collaborated with regulatory agencies 

on technical standards and have commented on technical standards drafted and 
developed by other independent gaming laboratories.  Does this experience 
address the question or is it directed more specifically to only those technical 
standards which have been written by our organization and subsequently adopted 
by regulatory agencies?

A6:
Because the IGC has no internal gaming laboratory or equivalent staff, it relies heavily on Independent Gaming Laboratory expertise for the development and implementation of technical standards.  Due to the agency's staffing limitations, comprehensive collaboration on the substance of technical standards is not a significant part of the gaming regulatory approach in Indiana.  Section 2.4.2.2 of the Technical Proposal is aimed at determining each respondent's approach to the development of technical standards, including whether the respondent is capable and in the practice of independently doing so.
3.1 PROPOSAL EVALUATION PROCEDURE

3.1.4 
Based on the results of this evaluation, a maximum of two qualifying proposals  

        
determined to be the most advantageous to the State, taking into account all of the 

       
evaluation factors, may be selected by IDOA and IGC for further action, such as

      
contract negotiations.

Q7:
What is the basis or limiting factor with selecting a maximum of two qualifying


Proposals?

A7:
This statement was erroneously entered into the RFP document and has been removed from the document. Please refer to the new language in the Addendum 1 on the solicitation page.
Summary Question:

Q8:
With only three known independent gaming laboratories with facilities in the 

United States currently serving the gaming industry, is it the purpose of this RFP to exclude equal opportunity to one specific entity by such narrowly defined requirements?

A8:
No.  The Commission seeks to contract with laboratories that can maintain 


or exceed the current level of service that the Commission receives, and it 


has drafted the requirements for this RFP with its current level of service in 


mind.
Q9:
Would the IGC consider eliminating the RFP process and simply licensing or developing criteria to authorize qualified Independent Testing Laboratories to provide testing for the IGC?

A9:
No. Commission staff considered the suggested concept but ultimately rejected it prior to the commencement of the RFP process.
1.
Rule IC 2-6-1(12)(A) reads: 

(12) "Authorized independent gaming laboratory" means an independent gaming laboratory that: 

(A) Meets the qualifications established by the commission; and… 

We agree that clear Qualifications criteria are a fundamental requirement of ‘objective’ selection (and scoring) of independent gaming labs (“IGL”). However, it is unclear from RFP 10-83 what these Qualifications are. 

Q1:
Can the IGC provide or articulate the Qualifications that have been established, either within this RFP or anywhere else, so that we can prepare its response appropriately? 

A1:
The IGC will evaluate the substantive qualifications of each respondent based on the specific criteria identified in Sections 2.1.1 (Mandatory Requirements) and 3.2 (Evaluation Criteria) of the RFP.
2. 
RFP 10-83 states in numerous places that Quality of Work is a key measurement in the selection process. 

We believe that Quality of Work is critical to the selection of an IGL. Fundamental to the notion of Quality is its m measurement by agreed Metrics. However, it is unclear from RFP 1083 what these Metrics are. 

Q2:
Can the IGC articulate or provide the measurement Metrics that its current test lab is measured against so that we can prepare its response appropriately? 

A2:
Specific metrics for tracking and analyzing indicia of Certification Testing “quality” shall be developed in conjunction with, and applied equally to, any and all laboratories selected to receive a contract at the conclusion of this RFP process.  IGC staff presently places significant importance on its current gaming lab contractor’s commitment to maintaining a robust and independent quality assurance staff to provide appropriate layers of internal checks and balances.  Section 2.4 of the RFP invites respondents to showcase their own measurable indicia of “quality” by identifying any relevant internal policies and procedures as well as supporting data.
3. 
RFP 10-83 does not define the term Quality as it relates to the measurements of testing. For example, testing quality may include workflow processes, test report writing, errors or omissions, etc. 

Q3:
Can the IGC provide its definition of Quality so that we can prepare its s response appropriately? 
A3:
See answer to previous question.
4. 
The universally accepted measurement of testing Quality is Accuracy as measured by product Revocations. Revoked products show the number of errors made by labs in testing, leading to the most effective Accuracy measure. Product Revocations information is widely available in each IGL online databases. 

Given the IGC’s clear commitment to the Quality of Work and Quality, we humbly requests that the IGC extend its requirements in IN RFP 10-83 to include a complete history of product revocations from each respondent, for all testing projects performed by them since January 1, 2007.
Q4:
Can the IGC extend its requirements in IN RFP 10-83 to include a complete history of product revocations from each IGL respondent, for all testing projects performed by them since January 1, 2007, so that Accuracy can be measured?
A4:
IGC staff does not concur that measuring the overall quality of a laboratory’s Certification Testing capabilities and performance is an exercise as simple as tracking “accuracy as measured by product revocations.”  Nevertheless, because staff believes accuracy is one element relevant to a qualitative analysis, Section 2.4.1.6 of the RFP specifically requires that each respondent describe its internal policies and procedures for tracking and measuring accuracy, including a full year of supporting data.
5. 
The Cost Addendum implies that RNG evaluation testing fee is listed as per RNG for a flat fee. Our experience indicates RNG’s vary in design and implementation complexity, requiring a flexible range of resource skill and effort. 

Q5:
Can the IGC amend this requirement so that costs associated with RNG evaluation include Time & Materials? 

A5:
Attachment D, the Cost Proposal Template, sets forth a bare minimum format for cost proposals.  IGC staff invites Respondents to include any relevant billing details in the cost proposals they submit as part of this RFP.  The IGC will negotiate the exact details of RNG billing with the successful laboratory/laboratories.
6. 
In Section 1.4, it states that the IGL must conduct any and all Certification Testing functions in a comprehensive, accurate and timely manner. 

We certainly agree with this as a principal, but to clearly understand the expectations of the IGC requires additional information. 

Q6:
Has the IGC developed metrics for measuring ‘comprehensive, accurate and timely manner’ for the following products?

	
	ACTUAL HOURS of TESTING (comprehensive and accurate)
	ELAPSED HOURS o (timely manner) of TESTING

	NEW CMS
	
	

	MODIFIED CMS
	
	

	NEW GAME
	
	

	MODIFED GAME
	
	

	CLONE GAME
	
	

	NEW SLOT PLATFORM
	
	

	MODIFIED SLOT PLATFORM
	
	

	NEW CABINET
	
	

	MODIFIED CABINET
	
	


A6:
To date, specific metrics for the identified products have not been developed.  
7.
In Section 1.4 the IGC requires the IGL provide a comprehensive IGC certification report. However, we customize its Certification Test Reports to the exact need of each individual regulator around the world and in the USA. 

Q7:
Can the IGC provide an example of its preferred Certification Format to enable us to respond appropriately?
A7:     The IGC will work closely with the successful respondent(s) to develop an appropriate format for certification reports.
8.
Rule IAC 2-6-3.1 reads: 

(14) "Non-certification testing" means an independent gaming laboratory testing or otherwise analyzing an item or technology: 

(A) By arrangement with a manufacturer or distributor; and 

(B) For purposes other than issuing or denying certification as described under section 3 of this rule. 

Non-Certification Testing is referred to in Sections 2.1.1, 3.1A and B. After seeking experienced gaming legal advice on this matter, it is unclear to us what is meant by the rule and the term in relation to IGLs. 

We surmise the intent of this rule is to ensure that product manufacturers will not be able to attempt product certification with one lab, and upon rejection for compliance reasons, take the same product for certification to another lab. 

Q8:
Is the IGC looking for assurances from IGLs that they will not support ‘lab shopping’ in relation to certification testing? 

Can the IGC clarify how this rule would be implemented in practice?

A8:
Yes.  The cited regulation (which is actually located at 68 IAC 6-3-1(c)(14) is one of the safeguards the IGC has put in place to help prevent “lab shopping.”  Another such safeguard is at 68 IAC 2-6-3(b)(4).   In the absence of express approval from the Executive Director, the IGC requires licensed game manufacturers to refrain from engaging multiple Authorized Independent Gaming Laboratories to assist in game development and/or other preliminary testing/analyses.  Without such a safeguard in place, it would be possible for manufacturers to sample probable testing results from multiple authorized labs and ultimately select the one who is likely to provide the greatest likelihood of certification testing success.  As will be specified in any contract(s) awarded at the end of this RFP process, in the event an Authorized Independent Gaming Laboratory has reason to believe that a licensed supplier is violating the cited regulation, IGC staff would expect the lab to disclose the information immediately.
9.
In Section 1.4, the IGC indicates that it wants product certification by IGLs to occur in the USA. Many major gaming manufacturers choose to develop, test and certify products in multiple locations around the world because expertise and technical standards are higher in some jurisdictions (exceeding IGC technical standards). Of course, any product coming into the Indiana regulatory jurisdiction will be certified to the IGC technical standards. 

Q9:
Is it the intent of IGC that gaming products only be certified for Indiana in the USA? 

What is the technical and quality of requiring USA certification for Indiana gaming?

If an international office of a selected/awarded test lab has previously certified product for Indiana, is it required that the same product be re-certified at additional cost and time to the IGC-licensed manufacturer? 

Is this the current practice of the IGC or a new clause for consideration? 

A9:
It is the intent of IGC staff that all Certification Testing for Indiana be performed in the United States.  This is a new requirement.  Budget and travel restrictions recently imposed on the IGC by the State make it virtually impossible for IGC staff to travel internationally.  As such, in the event it becomes necessary for IGC staff to observe, participate and/or review Certification Testing procedures in the laboratory environment, such a lab must be located in the United States.  IGC staff intends to begin enforcing the new restriction at the conclusion of this RFP process and upon execution of the awarded contract(s).   
10.   
In Section 1.4 it states that the ITL must perform a Complete Source   
Code Analysis required again?

Q10:
If source code for has already been completely analyzed and verified, and only updates to the software are provided and resubmitted, is Complete Source Code Analysis required again? 

A10:
Complete Source Code Analysis is generally not required for software updates.  However, analysis is required to ensure that the functionality and design of the update is compatible with the prior submitted source code that has already been approved
11.
In Section 1.4 it refers to IGL online database providing reports for all stages of product submission and certification. 

Q11:
Is a formal report required for the IGC if a project is withdrawn or uncertified prior to completion? 

What application does the IGC currently use for its approval database? 

In which file format does the IGC approval database currently require its reports to be supplied (i.e. .xls, .txt, .csv etc. …)? 

A11:
In the ordinary course, IGC staff will only expect certification reports for work in instances where certification testing has been completed.  


The IGC currently uses an internally created application for its approval database.


The IGC approval database requires that certification reports are supplied via .PDF file format.

 
12.
In Section 1.1.1, the IGC reserves the right to request clarifications on proposals submitted to the State. 

It is our experience that RFPs are often scored subjectively and each reviewer’s score can vary widely. In some government RFP processes, a stated variation (e.g., 3%) in scoring among reviewers will require additional clarification from the respondents. 

Q12:
Is there a formal approach available to the IGC and IDOA to review obvious variations in scoring? 

In a previous RFP with the IGC, where the results were within one overall point between the respondents, no further review or meeting was conducted to ensure the veracity of the scoring program. 

In the event that scores are similar between respondents, will the IGC commit to 
communication with both IGLs?
A12:
The State of Indiana will not commit to such a scenario. The State of Indiana does not have a formal process for this scenario. However, IDOA performs all due diligence to clarify any outstanding questions or issues that may arise during the evaluation process.

13.
In Section 2.1.1, the IGC requires prompt disclosure of any contract with or


services provided to a supplier licensee. 

Successful IGLs can provide hundreds of projects for suppliers in any given year. 

Q13:
Does the meaning of this requirement demand IGLs to communicate every service (project) provided to a Supplier Licensee? 

How does IGC intend this requirement to be implemented? 

Can the IGC define “level of Independence that is adequate” so that we can respond appropriately?

A13:
IGC staff will work closely with successful respondent(s) during contract negotiations to develop a reasonable reporting mechanism.   One potential mechanism that may be explored is a quarterly reporting requirement.
14.
In Section 2.3.1, the IGC requires various information about the respondent, ranging from physical office descriptions, to test methods in performing certification testing, etc. Some of this information would be deemed proprietary. 

Q14:
Given Section 1.15 -Confidential Information, how do Respondents protect proprietary and commercial information? 
A14:
Yes. The State will take all actions to protect confidential and proprietary information so long as the respondent CLEARLY marks each document that contains confidential or proprietary information. The State recommends that all confidential information be placed in a separate envelope that is clearly marked as CONFIDENTIAL, as part of their hard copy proposal. Additionally, the State recommends that respondents separate all confidential information contained on the CD-ROM's requested, by CLEARLY labeling the information as CONFIDENTIAL. 
15.
In Section 2.4.1.3, the IGC requests a summary of the professional experience of each company owner. 

Q15:
How is the professional experience of one individual within a global corporation relevant to a company’s ability to service the IGC? 

A15:
Qualifications of a respondent’s owners is a boilerplate provision in any RFP in the state of Indiana.  In this particular context, the requested information is but one factor being considered among many as part of a comprehensive analysis of each company.
16.
In Section 1.4, the IGC notes the requirement of the IGL being able to support IGC as a sole source, if necessary. 

We are clearly a proponent of multiple authorized test labs, and never seeks a monopoly environment. Although there could be acts of god, or other situations which could affect this status of a jurisdiction with multiple labs, this has never been the case anywhere. 
Q16:
To ensure our ability to service the IGC as a sole source “if necessary” can the IGC provide the number of games, cabinets, platforms, systems etc the IGC approved since January 1, 2007 to enable us to respond appropriately? 


How does the IGC define ‘adequate resources’?
Can the IGC confirm that it will contract more than one or all qualified IGLs for the coming contract period? 

A16:
There have been 10,889 individual items approved by IGC since 01/01/2007.  This number may decrease in the future due to recent changes in 68 IAC 2-6-2 which requires casino licensees to submit for approval and inclusion to the commission database only those items and technologies that they intend to use.  Additionally, the Scope of Work section of RFP 10-83 specifically indicates that the IGC’s contract(s) with successful applicants will require each lab to submit for approval by the IGC only those items and technologies that are specifically requested for use in Indiana.   


IGC staff can confirm that it will enter into good faith contract negotiations with multiple vendors – if appropriate.  Whether more than one respondent will qualify to enter into such negotiations will depend on how each respondent’s proposal fares when subjected to an objective scoring formula developed by staff prior to receipt of proposals.
17.
In Section 2.1.1, the IGC refers to the respondent working with other State jurisdictions. 

We have been working in the regulated world for nearly 30 years globally, and can offer great experience to the IGC and the state of Indiana. That said, our history in the US is limited in comparison to some of our competitors, which could put the oldest and most experienced IGL in the world at a disadvantage in a subjective review. 

Q17:
Would referencing work for Nationally Recognized Sovereign Nations and/or other foreign countries’ regulatory bodies negatively impact our score? 

A17:
IGC staff believes that prior work in regulatory jurisdictions that are closely analogous to Indiana is the most relevant indicator of preparedness to service the IGC’s specific needs.
18. 
In Section 2.4.2.1, the IGG requests a comprehensive list of independent technical standards that the Respondent has developed and would anticipate using to perform Certification Testing in compliance with Indiana laws (specifically 68 IAC 2-6-1 through 68 IAC 2-6-3.1) and the Scope of Work section of this RFP. Include complete copies of at least two (2) such technical standards. 

This question implies that each IGL would be testing to a different technical standard, other then what has been adopted by the IGC currently. An IGL only ever tests to the standards that they are required to test to, those that are formally adopted by the regulatory body, in the case Indiana. 

Q18:
Is it the expectation of the IGC to have multiple IGLs testing to different technical standards? 

If the answer is no, does a comprehensive list of technical standards still need to be provided? 

A18:
In a regulatory environment where multiple gaming laboratories are authorized to perform Certification Testing functions, IGC staff believes it is indeed possible that different labs will test to different technical standards.  Understanding the nature and scope of each respondent’s technical standards is therefore a critical element of the evaluation process. 
Section 1.20 establishes a contract goal of 8% for Minority Business and 8% Woman Business Enterprises.

Q19: 
Can a respondent list a company that is preparing a certification application in which respondent feels certain will be certified?

A19: 
A respondent may utilize this subcontractor, however, they will not be given M/WBE participation points for a contractor whose certification is not finalized with the M/WBE Department – prior to the proposal due date.

Q20: 
Will a selected laboratory be permitted to add or change the parties in the future to account for newly certified companies that might be able to provide the limited services that a respondent may be able to subcontract?

A20: 
A selected vendor may add certified firms with the approval of the State at any time during the contract. However, the respondent will still be held accountable for the M/WBE commitments made to the subcontractors in their proposal.
Q21: 
Will M/WBE subcontractors that are still in the application stage be permissible to utilize?

A21: 
A respondent may utilize this subcontractor; however, they will not be given M/WBE participation points for a contractor whose certification is not finalized with the M/WBE Department.

Q22: 
Is it acceptable to list the intended firms without indicating the exact participation percentage the M/WBE may receive each year based on the fluctuating workload?
A22:
No. Respondents must commit to a percentage and/or dollar amount for each subcontractor.
